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23rd April,  2019
Email:  TPBreview@treasury.gov.au

Mr. Nick Westerink
Individuals and Indirect Tax Division

The Treasury

Langton Cres,

PARKES    A.C.T.    2600
Dear Sir,

Re:  Review of Tax Practitioners Board

The Australian Institute of Conveyancers (Vic. Div.) (AICVic) is the peak body in Victoria representing Licensed Conveyancers who undertake over 55% of Conveyancing transactions in this State.     We welcome the opportunity of making  a submission relating to the Review of the  Tax Practitioners Board (TPB).

With the introduction by the Federal Government of the Foreign Resident Capital Gains Withholding (FRCGW) with minimal consultation, the regime came into effect on 1st July 2016.    Property being sold valued at $2million or more was affected and Conveyancing practitioners were obliged to ensure that the monies were withheld at settlement  and remitted to the Australian Taxation Office (ATO).   The property value  threshold was later changed to $750,000, thus capturing a significant number of properties around Australia.
The AICVic sought and obtained from the ATO an exemption from the Tax Agents Services Act 2009 (TASA) for Conveyancers to perform certain services relating to the Purchaser Payment notification.   This was merely granted to enable Conveyancers who were obliged to deduct the monies from the Vendor at settlement and attend to payment to carry out this task without fear of breaching the TASA.
The TPB published explanatory guidelines on its website warning all Conveyancers that unless they were a Tax Agent registered under the TASA or an Australian Legal Practitioner (ALP), for which an exemption applied under the Act, they would be breaching the TASA.    The TPB guidelines were clear and unambiguous stating that a Conveyancer would need to be registered with the TPB as a Tax Agent :

· To apply for a Clearance Certificate

· To make a Variation Application
The TPB considered that  these services would involve the provision of a tax agent service, stating “if you complete and submit these forms to the ATO on behalf of a client for a fee or other reward, you may need to be registered with the TPB.”
Australian Institute of Conveyancers (Victorian Division) Inc

Incorporated under the Associations Incorporation Act 1`981

A0022980P  ABN88 094 065 126

 Tel: 9328 8175                                     Level 1, 551 King Street                                www.aicvic.com.au

 Fax: 9328 8290                                     West Melbourne   3003                  email: admin@aicvic.com.au
2.

The website went on to state that “An Australian Legal Practitioner who completes and/or lodges the Clearance Certificate application and Variation application or the Purchaser payment  notification as part of a legal service does not need to be registered with the TPB to undertake that work.”    Further   “If your client asks you to complete and submit these forms to the ATO and you are not a registered tax agent or ALP, you need to make it clear to your client that you are the transmitter of data to the ATO and not the provider of a tax agent service.....”

No such warning was given to ALPs, even though many of them would have no more tax knowledge than a Licensed Conveyancer.   There is an assumption in the TASA that just because you are an ALP, you have enough knowledge and experience in tax matters to undertake the legal work required to comply with the FRCGW.

In effect, the TPB has set themselves up as regulators of legal work, thereby ignoring legislation in Victoria and New South Wales which enables Licensed Conveyancers to undertake ‘legal work’.    The State Governments of Victoria and NSW regulate who can undertake ‘legal work’, not the Federal Government and certainly not an agency such as the TPB.

On 21st June 2017 I wrote to the ATO (see copy letter attached) explaining that under the Conveyancers Act 2006 in Victoria, the definition of ‘conveyancing work’ states that it is ‘legal work’ carried out in connection with any transaction that creates, varies, transfers, conveys or extinguishes a legal or equitable interest in any real or personal property.”    The word “ancilliary” is included and covers a broad range of tasks which, we argue, covers the task of applying for a Clearance Certificate and a Purchaser Payment Form.       

Subsequently, on 17th January 2018 I and our  President, Joan Lentini, met with Ian Taylor, Chairman of the TPB and his staff, and put forward our views with regard to the TPB’s guidelines  published on its website.   The Chairman and his associates appeared unaware of the Conveyancing profession’s role or its regulation and were non-committal.   We had expected a response to our submission but to date have not heard from the TPB.

The Australian Institute of Conveyancers (NSW), has, however, pursued this argument and has recently provided the TPB with Senior Counsel’s opinion which reinforces our view that NSW Licensed Conveyancers (and in turn Victorian Licensed Conveyancers) are on an equivalent footing with ALPs in relation to the extent of legal work that they can undertake pursuant to the respective Acts that regulate them and, for that reason, should enjoy the same exemption in the TASA that lawyers enjoy.

I therefore submit that the TPB has acted outside its remit and that the Department of Treasury should make sure that they  amend the information  published  on its website and acknowledge that Licensed Conveyancers in Victoria and NSW should have the same exemption under TASA as ALPs.

Yours faithfully,

Jill Ludwell OAM
Chief Executive Officer
